PN
M |

CitrusConnection

PROGRESS IN MOTION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, November 12", 2025, at 8:30 AM
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd, Lakeland, FL 33815

AGENDA

Callto Order
1. Approval of the October 8" Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes
2. Public Comments
3. GEM Award
4. Florida Polytechnic University Partnership / Edward Kim
a. Partnership Presentation
b. Letter of support
5. Finance/Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer
a. LAMTD Financials
b. PCTS Financials
c. TD Financials
6. Legal/Ben Darby, Esq
a. General Manager Performance Evaluation
b. Citrus Connection Attorney Agreement
7. Planning/ Nicole McCleary, Director
a. Transit Development Plan (TDP) Major Update
8. Human Resources / Tony Kirk, Director
a. Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
9. Transportation Disadvantaged / Marcia Roberson, Director

a. Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)

10. General Manager Report / Tom Phillips

a. Agency Update(s)

11. Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips

a. October Calendar
b. Ridership Update

12. Other Business

Adjournment

Action Required

Approval

None

None

None
Approval

None
None
None

Approval
None

Approval

Approval

Approval

None

None
None

TBD



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025
AGENDA ITEM #1

Agenda Item:

Presenter:

Policy Analysis:

Recommended
Action:

Attachments:

Approval of the Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes
for October 8, 2025

Ella Joseph
TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic
processes.
Board approval of the Citrus Connection Meeting

Minutes for October 8%, 2025

October 8", 2025 Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #3

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

GEM Award

Paul Simms, Director of Operations

None

GEM Award for Marcellus Patterson



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #4a

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Partnership with Florida Polytechnic University

Edward Kim, Professor

None

Florida Polytechnic University proposes a pilot project to
develop a real-time tracking app for The Squeeze in
Lakeland.



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #4b

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Letter of support for Florida Polytechnic University

Tom Phillips, General Manager

None

The Board’s letter of support will affirm Citrus
Connection’s commitment to improving transit
reliability through innovation and partnership with
Florida Poly, with potential expansion to other cities in
Polk County.

Letter of support



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #5a

Agenda Item:

Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

FY2024-25
LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement
For the period ending September 30, 2025

Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer

None

The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less
than one year. The report is used to convey the
performance of the district’s financial position and
budget comparisons-budgetto actual on ayear-to-date
basis. Unlike annual financial statements, Interim
Statements do not have to be audited.

Interim financial statements increase communication
between the District Board of Directors, management,
and the public to provide up-to-date financial
information and compliance with the budget.

See attachments



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Monthly Financial Report
For September 2025
FY 2024-2025

Year-to-Date Summary

.. Percent of FY Actual % of FY
Description e Annual Budget Actual Annual Budget
Revenue YTD 100% $15,807,667 $16,047,807 100%
Expenses YTD 100% $15,807,667 $15,587,789 98.6%
REVENUES:

The total revenues realized through September 30, 2025, totaled $16M or 100% of the annual budget.
e Farebox revenues reflect $306K or 87% of the annual budgeted revenues.

e Interest Income on Investment income totals S608K. This represents interest in income in our SBA
reserve account.

e FDOT annual operating grants are $2.7M or 100% of the annual budget.

e FTA Section 5307 operating grants are $3.4M or 96% of the annual budget.

e Advertising income is $166K, or 100% of the total planned revenue.

e The PCTS support cost reimbursement revenue is $615K or 100% of annual budget.

e All the other revenues are within the annual budget.



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Monthly Financial Report
For September 2025
FY 2024-2025

EXPENSES:

The total expenses year-to-date through September 30, 2025, totaled $15.6 million or 98.6% of the annual
budget.

e Salaries and benefits cost are $11.6M, or 99% of the annual budget.

e Fuel and lubricants expenses totaled $570K, or 85% of the annual budget.

e Materials and supplies totaled $699K, or 108% of the annual budget.

e Insurance expenses are $653K, or 103% of the annual budget.

e Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments.
e Office expenses are $335K, or 145% of the annual budget.

e All other expenses are within the annual budget.

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Based on the annual YTD budget-to-actual through September 30™, the financials reflect a favorable variance of $.4 M
with 99% of the fiscal year completed.

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9/30/24 9/30/23 9/30/22 9/30/21 9/30/20
1. Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes) 6.5% 6.9% 8.7% 9.7% 9.3%
2. Cost per revenue hour $125.34 $161.12 $141.63 $130.01 $117.66
3. Revenue Hours 149,965 142,860 132,260 135,115 146,700
4. Fuel Cost (S) $1,382,599 $1,562,003 $1,399,855 $878,132 $744,587
5. Ridership 874,550 848,241 693,018 631,000 855,407




Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Financial Statement
FY24-25
Oct 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025
For the Period Ended September 2025

UnAudited
Revenue

Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent Expended
PCTS - Support Cost Reimb. 615,472.00 615,468.00 100.0%
Other Contract Revenue 147,780.00 387,388.17 100.0%
Farebox/Pass Sales 352,000.00 306,586.62 87.1%
Miscellaneous Income 60,600.00 127,776.17 100.0%
Contract Income (UAP) 134,400.00 133,349.00 99.2%
Advertising Revenue 156,000.00 166,400.03 100.0%
Investment Income 795,700.00 607,859.51 76.4%
Operating Grant - FDOT 2,571,829.00 2,665,297.13 103.6%
Operating Grant - Federal 3,531,635.00 3,397,185.00 96.2%
Gain on Disposal of Asset 2,000.00 - 0.0%
Squeeze 4,000.00 77,386.50 100.0%
Ad Valorum Income, net 7,436,251.00 7,563,111.24 100.0%
Total 15,807,667.00 16,047,807.37 100.0%

Expenses

Annual Budget YTD Actual Percent Expended
Salaries 8,392,691.00 8,059,248.48 96.0%
Employee Benefits 3,355,126.00 3,537,122.78 105.4%
Advertising Fees 10,820.00 7,387.76 68.3%
Professional & Technical Ser 398,330.00 367,826.59 92.3%
Contract Maintenance Services 151,950.00 178,293.10 117.3%
Other Services 100,200.00 200,678.67 200.3%
Fuel & Lubricants 668,500.00 569,849.94 85.2%
Freight 10,647.00 9,600.77 90.2%
Repairs & Maintenance 52,600.00 16,965.90 32.3%
Materials & Supplies/SQUEEZE 644,550.00 699,134.97 108.5%
Utilities/Telephone 203,300.00 219,182.62 107.8%
Insurance Expense 637,500.00 652,872.89 102.4%
Dues & Subscriptions 55,150.00 39,234.01 71.1%
Education/Training/Meeting/Travel 185,900.00 144,479.73 77.7%
Service Charges 35,750.00 24,865.84 69.6%
Office Expense 230,400.00 334,758.86 145.3%
Advertising & Promotions 35,000.00 34,169.27 97.6%
Miscellaneous Expenses 287,053.35 136,749.48 47.6%
Property Appraiser/Tax Collector Comm 220,000.00 223,193.82 101.5%
Debt Services 132,200.00 132,173.76 100.0%
Total 15,807,667.35 15,587,789.24 98.6%

Change in Financial Position - 460,018.13




CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #5b

Agenda Item:

Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

FY2024-25
Polk County Transit Services Monthly Financial Statement
For the period ending September 30, 2025

Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer

None

The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than
one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the
district’s financial position and budget comparisons —budget to
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited.

Interim financial statements increase communication between
the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with
the budget.

See attachments



Polk County Transit Services
Monthly Financial Report
YTD September 30, 2025
FY 2024-2025
(10/01/24 - 09/30/25)

Percent
YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Expended
Revenues YTD $11,105,400 $10,721,69 97%
Expenses YTD $11,105,400 $10,443,480 94%

Revenue Highlights:

Operating revenues realized are $10.7M or 97% of the annual budget.
Polk County Contract revenues totaled $4.1M, or 100% of the annual budget.
City Contributions received to date are $721K or 101% of the annual budget
Farebox revenues totaled $48K or 76% of the annual budget.

FDOT grants received to date are $1.7M or 100% of the annual budget.

FTA grants received to date are $3.4M or 91% of the annual budget.
These grants are paid out retrospectively after expenses are incurred each quarter.

Expense highlights
Operating expenses consist of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract expenses.
Total expenses for the period totaled $10.4M or 94% of the annual budget.

e Salaries and wages totaled $5.2M or 96% of the annual budget.

e Operating expenses totaled $2.7M or 89% of the annual budget.

e The purchase contract for Transitions Commute Solutions which provides transit services for the
district totaled $2.4M or 96% of the annual budget.

Operating Results

Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by 278K.



Polk County Contract
Financial Statement
FY24-25
October 1, 2024 - September 30, 2025
For the Period Ended SEPTEMBER 2025

Unaudited
12.0 Months
100% Of Fiscal Year
Revenue
Percent
Annual Budget YTD Actual Expended
County Match $ 2,715,000 | $ 2,715,000 100%
County Contribution - PCTS $ 1,463,000 | $ 1,463,000 100%
City Contribution $ 711,000 | $ 721,232 101%
Other Revenue Transfer Cares Funding | § -19 - 0%
Misc Income (insurance proceeds) $ 228,000 | § 23,968 11%
Other Contracts $ 31,917
Fares $ 63,200 | $ 47,994 76%
FDOT Grants:
Block $ 765,000 | $ 660,866 86%
RURAL $ 450,000 | $ 811,463 180%
SUNRAIL $ 240,200 | $ 176,555 74%
Travel Trainer- Mobility Mgmt $ 11,569
Capital- State
FTA
FTA 5307 Grant $ 3,850,000 | § 3,436,007 89%
Capital -Federal $ 620,000 | $ 622,126 100%
Capital Contributions - County $ -1$ 0%
Total $ 11,105,400 | $ 10,721,697 97%
Expenses
Percent
Annual Budget  YTD Actual Expended
Labor $ 5,439,450 | § 5,217,637 96%
Contract $ 2,575,000 | § 2,461,412 96%
Operating $ 3,090,950 | $ 2,764,431 89%
Capital $ -1 $ - 0%
Total $ 11,105,400 | $ 10,443,480 94%

Change in Financial Position $ - $ 278,217




CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #5¢

Agenda Item:

Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

FY2025-26
Transportation Disadvantaged Monthly Financial Statement
For the period ending September 30, 2025

Rhonda Carter, Chief Financial Officer

None

The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than
one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the
district’s financial position and budget comparisons —budget to
actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial
statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited.

Interim financial statements increase communication between
the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to
provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with
the budget.

The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year is July 1
to June 30. The funding is comprised 90% from the State and
10% matching funds by Polk County.

See attachments



Transportation Disadvantaged Program
Month of September 30, 2025
Percent of FY Reported (25%)
State FY July 1, 2025 thru June 30, 2026

Revenues
The revenues totaled $334K or 23% of the annual budget
The TD Trust Fund Grant reflects $301K or 23% of the grant.

Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $0.
The County funding 10% match totaled $33K or 23% annual budget.

Expenses

Operating expenses consist of labor costs, operating, and contract expenses.
Total expenses for the period totaled $313K or 21% of the annual budget.
Salaries, wages, and benefits totaled $236K or 22% of the annual Budget.

Operating expenses totaled $77K or 19% of the annual Budget.

Operating Results

Actual revenues exceeded expenses by $21,355.



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Financial Statement
Transportation Disadvantage Program
Period Ending - July 2025- June 2026

Fiscal year month 3.0
% fiscal year 25%
UnAudited
Revenue
Percent

Annual Budget  YTD Actual Expended
Revenues
County Match 10% S 146,155 | $§ 33,445 23%
Contract Revenue S 50|S - 0%
Adult Day Care S -
FDOT Grants:

CTD Grant -Operating S 1,314,899 | S 301,004 23%
Total S 1,461,104 $ 334,449 23%
Expenses
Percent

Annual Budget  YTD Actual Expended
Labor $ 1,067,076 $236,506 22%
Operating S 394,028 | $ 76,588 19%
Total S 1,461,104 $313,093 21%

S 21,355
313,093.36
SO

Revenues exceed Expenses by
S 21,355



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #6a

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

General Manager Performance Evaluation

Ben Darby, Esq

Approval

Per the contract renewal of the General Manager on Aug 28,
2024, it is necessary for the board of directors to evaluate the
performance and job duties of the General Manager.



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #6b

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Citrus Connection’s Attorney Agreement Update

Ben Darby, Esq

None

Citrus Connection’s Attorney Agreement Update



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025
AGENDA ITEM #7a

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Transit Development Plan (TDP) Major Update

Nicole McCleary, AICP

Approval

Citrus Connection is finalizing its Transit Development
Plan (TDP) Update, a strategic framework that guides
service delivery, investment priorities, and system
improvements over the next ten years.

The public comment period began on 10.08.2025,
providing an opportunity for stakeholders and
community members to review the draft plan and
submit feedback. Citrus Connection received no
comments regarding the Major TDP Update and is
asking for the Board to adopt the newest Major TDP
Update before itis submitted to FDOT.

Citrus Connection Major TDP Update



Citrus Connection
Transit Development Plan

LAMTD Meeting

November 2025

. Polk Transportation
Planning Organization
CltrusConnectlon

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO

19



What is a Transit Development Plan?
m 10-year vision for transit

TDP IS SO O Plan that identifies both

funded & unfunded needs

Collaborative process

What TDP iS NOT: Helps Citrus Connection set

* Budget tra?ns-lt. service/capital
priorities

« Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
 Binding agreement

Updated every five years

20



What is Next?

 30-day public comment
period compLETED

« Adoption by LAMTD in
November currentser

e« Submit TDP to FDOT in
November | wexasmer |



cflagler
Completed

cflagler
current step blue

cflagler
Next Step


CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #8a

Agenda Item:

Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Memorandum of Understand (MOU) between the Bridge Way
Foundation and the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District

Tony Kirk, Director of Human Resources/Risk

Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding

The proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between
the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District (LAMTD) and the Bridge
Way Foundation establishes a partnership to support
transportation services for Bridge Way program participants.
Under this agreement, Bridge Way Foundation will continue to
provide transportation using its own vehicles to ensure
participants have reliable access to essential programs and
services.

In support of this collaboration, LAMTD will provide insurance
coverage for the vehicles operated by Bridge Way Foundation
while they are engaged in authorized program activities. This
arrangement enhances community mobility and aligns with
LAMTD’s mission to expand transportation access through
strategic partnerships.

Approval of this MOU is recommended to formalize the

partnership and ensure clear roles, responsibilities, and liability
protections for both organizations.

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

22



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #9a

Agenda Item:

Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) between the
Commission for Transportation Disadvantaged and the
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District

Marcia Roberson, Director of Regional Mobility Services

Approval of the Memorandum of Agreement

This Memorandum of Agreement will designate the Lakeland
Area Mass Transit District as the Community Transportation
Coordinator for Polk County. This Agreement is made in
consideration of the mutual benefits to both parties; said
consideration acknowledged hereto by the parties as good and
valuable consideration. This Agreement covers from July 1,
2026 to June 30, 2031.

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)

23



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #10a

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Agency Updates

Tom Phillips, General Manager

None

Items and information from the General Manager

None

24



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #11a

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

October Calendar

Tom Phillips, General Manager

None
Review and summary of events taken place in October.

See attachment

25



October 2025
Tom Phillips

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday

Friday Saturday
Sep 28 29 30

Oct 1

’ 1
b 18
h 25

Transit Briefing
* 2 28 22 Nov 1

26



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025
AGENDAITEM #11b

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Summary:

Attachments:

Ridership Report

Tom Phillips, General Manager

None
September 2025 ridership information

Citrus Connection Ridership Report September 2025

27



Citrus Connection Ridership
Report

September 2025

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO



Fixed Route Monthly Ridership

90,000
85,000

80,000
74,020

75,000

70,000
71,305

65,000

Total Fixed Route Ridership 841,152 from October 2024 to September 2025
60,000

Percent Change in Total Ridership June 2024 vs June 2025 -3.67% —FY23 -24
55,000 Percent Change in Monthly Ridership June 2024 vs June 2025 -8.42%

amm—FY24-25

50,000

October November December January February March April May September

CO CitrusConnectior:

PROGRESS IN MOTION



Gold Line
14,030

SEPTEMBER 2025 RIDERSHIP

sissia Yellow Lin

Total Ridership for September 2025: 71,305

ca CitrusConnection

PROGRESS IN MOTION

e

Lime Line

Squeeze -
Nights/Weekend 1,808 1,514
Route 22XW 2,248
. 7R B e Line C\'/:/Ceusltator Blue Line 2 |Route 60
Purple Line 1 1,497 | 1,428
5,965 ROUte 15 2,056 Lakeland
4 627 Route 25 Squee;t;(—)Lunch ROl,Ig'(§618X
’ Orange Line 1,185
each Line Red Li
2,831 L e | 1,:9L7 675éne 21()5(6E7ast
1,984 Route 20X
Route 30 N |
oute i 431 | e
QLI PinkLine |greenLine |SilverLine|so/44 C”Eg;attor e [
5,345 3,116 | 2,590 1,815 Foay |Fae e

Lake Wales Squeeze — 220
Coral Line —195

SR33 Microtransit—162
Blue Line Saturdgy - 113

Route 26X - 53



Squeeze Total Ridership

4,500
4,000 3,881
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,430
2,000
1500 \/ — Total Squeeze Ridership September 2025 - 3,881
1,000 Lakeland Squeeze - Weekend/Night - 2,248
Lakeland Squeeze - Lunch - 990
500 Bartow Squeeze - 423
Lake Wales Squeeze - 220
0
October November December January February March April May June July August September

e Y23 -24  emm—FY24-25

CO CitrusConnection

PROGRESS IN MOTION



September 2025 - On-Time Performance

100%

90% 88% g79,

86%
83% 83% 83% 9 9
82% 82% gqo5 g1% 80%
- 78%
75% 75% 74% 74% 74%
72% 71% 69% 69%
- 0 ° 87%
0,
63% 63% 62% OTP low due to SR33 construction
N 56%
50%
N 48%
42%
40%
34%
30%
20%
10%
10% I
0%
& . . . R N SR S ' : ! g .

QJ{{/\ q/ b\} \$ \\>° & & .\Q@ o 06@ &’b & o \> \> ‘o N bp\b‘ \,\<‘ N N =

S N P N N A N SO CEN g g ” o

. \5@ o q:\ S Q~O Q\o Q K2 Q~° % Q~0 <O Q) Q (o 9 x§
NS o I @ N ©of

Q\ \/\(\ “0

S o
N

- These routes went through a service change or file correction, and it is anticipated that
on-time performance will improve in the October 2025 ridership report to the Board.

CitrusConnection

PROGRESS IN MOTION



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Wednesday, November 12", 2025

AGENDA ITEM #12

Agenda Item:
Presenter:

Recommended
Action:

Attachments:

Other Business

TBD

TBD

TBD

33



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

Board Members Present

City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley (Chair)
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz

Polk County Commissioner Martha Santiago (Vice-Chair)

City of Lakeland Commissioner Guy Lalonde Jr

Board Members Absent
Polk County Commissioner Becky Troutman

Executive Director: Tom Phillips
Chief Financial Officer: Rhonda Carter
Executive Coordinator: EllaJoseph

Call to Order
8:32 a.m. By Commissioner McCarley

Agenda Item #1 — Approval of the Minutes

a. Board approval of the September 2025 Citrus Connection Meeting Minutes

[Attachments available]

“Approval of meeting minutes for the September 2025 Citrus Connection Meeting

Minutes”
1%t Martha Santiago / 2" Bill Mutz

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Agenda Item #2 — Approval of the Minutes

b. Board approval of the September 17" Citrus Connection Public Hearing Meeting Minutes

[Attachments available]

“Approval of meeting minutes for the September 17" Citrus Connection Public

Hearing”
15* Guy Lalonde / 2" Martha Santiago

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

34



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

Agenda Item #3 — Public Comments
Julia Davis, TPO: Polk TPO Board Meeting tomorrow. PTA Board Meeting tomorrow right after the TPO. Polk

Vision Public Workshop on October 21 in winter Haven.

Agenda Item #4 - Finance / Rhonda Carter, CFO

a. LAMTD Financials

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Monthly Financial Report
For the August 2025
FY 2024-2025

Year-to-Date Summary
Description P(-:Crz;n;l(e)::Y Annual Budget Actual :::::‘aall‘ﬁf;gl:;
Revenue YTD 100% $15,807,667 $14,963,645 94.7%
Expenses YTD 100% $15,807,667 $14,280,233 90.3%

REVENUES:
The total revenues realized through August 31, 2025, totaled $14.9M or 94.7% of the annual budget

- Fareboxrevenues reflect $279K or 79% of the annual budgeted revenues.

- Interest Income on Investment income totals $567K. This represents interest in income in our
SBA reserve account.

- FDOT annual operating grants are $2.6M or 100% of the annual budget.

- FTA Section 5307 operating grants are $2.6M or 74% of the annual budget.

- Advertising income is $152K, or 98% of the total planned revenue.

- The PCTS support cost reimbursement revenue is $564K or 92% of annual budget.

- Allthe other revenues are within the annual budget.

EXPENSES:

The total expenses year-to-date through August 31, 2025, totaled $14.3 million or 90.3% of the annual
budget.

- Salaries and benefits cost are $10.7M, or 91% of the annual budget.
35



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

- Fuel and lubricants expenses totaled $491K, or 74% of the annual budget.

- Materials and supplies totaled $665K, or 103% of the annual budget.

- Insurance expenses are $598K, or 94% of the annual budget.

- Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments.

- Debt service of $121K pertains to the lease purchase of buses and 92% of the annual budget.

- All other expenses are within the annual budget.

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Based on the annual YTD budget-to-actual through August 31°*, the financials reflect a favorable
variance of $.7 M with 92% of the fiscal year completed.

STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9/30/24 9/30/23 9/30/22 9/30/21 9/30/20
1. Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes) 6.5% 6.9% 8.7% 9.7% 9.3%
2. Cost per revenue hour $125.34 $161.12 $141.63 $130.01 $117.66
3. Revenue Hours 149,965 142,860 132,260 135,115 146,700
4. Fuel Cost ($) $1,382,599 | $1,562,003  $1,399,855 $878,132 $744,587
5. Ridership 874,550 848,241 693,018 631,000 855,407
b. PCTS Financials

Polk County Transit Services
Monthly Financial Report
YTD August 31, 2025
FY 2024-2025
(10/01/24 - 09/30/25)

Percent

YTD Summary Annual Budget YTD Actual Expended

Revenues YTD $11,105,400 $9,805,863 88%

Expenses YTD $11,105,400 $9,050,607 81%

36




CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

Revenue Highlights:

Operating revenues realized are $9.8M or 88% of the annual budget.

Polk County Contract revenues totaled $4.1M, or 100% of the annual budget.
City Contributions received to date are $721K or 101% of the annual budget
Farebox revenues totaled $44K or 70% of the annual budget.

FDOT grants received to date are $1.4M or 98% of the annual budget.

FTA grants received to date are $3.4M or 76% of the annual budget.
These grants are paid out retrospectively after expenses are incurred each quarter.

Expense highlights

Operating expenses consist of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract expenses.
Total expenses for the period totaled $9M or 81% of the annual budget.

e Salaries and wages totaled $4.8M or 89% of the annual budget.

e Operating expenses totaled $2.5M or 81% of the annual budget.

e The purchase contract for Transitions Commute Solutions which provides transit services for the
district totaled $1.7M or 67% of the annual budget.

Operating Results
Actual Revenues exceeded Expenses by .7 million.

c. TD Financials

Transportation Disadvantaged Program
Month of August 31, 2025
Percent of FY Reported (17%)

State FY July 1, 2025 thru June 30, 2026

Revenues

The revenues totaled $218K or 15% of the annual budget

37



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

The TD Trust Fund Grant reflects $197K or 15% of the grant.
Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $0.
The County funding 10% match totaled $21K or 14% annual budget.

Expenses

Operating expenses consist of labor costs, operating, and contract expenses.
Total expenses for the period totaled $215K or 15% of the annual budget.
Salaries, wages, and benefits totaled $169K or 16% of the annual Budget.

Operating expenses totaled $46K or 12% of the annual Budget.

Operating Results

Actual revenues exceeded expenses by $3,778.

d. Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) - Public Transportation Grant Agreement (PTGA) for
the State Transit Block Grant Program having Financial Project Number FM# 440757-1-84-09

These funds will be utilized to assist the District with administrative, management, and operation expenses
necessary to provide public transportation services to the citizens of Polk County.

The FDOT funding to LAMTD for this project is $1,971,322 with matching funds provided by the District.

State Funding $ 1,971,322
LAMTD Match $ 1,141,488
County Match $ 826,594
Total Funding $ 3,942,644

[Attachments available]

“Approval of the Purchase of the 2025/2026 PTGA for the utilization of FDOT State
Transit Block Grant Program funds totaling $3,942,644.”
18t Bill Mutz / 2™ Martha Santiago

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

38



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

e. Purchase of six (6) Para Transit Buses

The requested vehicles will be utilized by Citrus Connection for Para Transit use. They will replace current
vehicles that are near EOL. The six (6) Ford E450 Vehicles are available under the TRIPS Contract # TRIPS-
22-CA-MB-LF-ABC via ABC Bus Parts Inc.

Ford E450 Cost: $171,100.00 Each

Extended Total: $1,026,600.00

[Attachments available]

“Approval of the Purchase of (6) six turtle top vehicles.”
15 Bill Mutz / 2" Guy Lalonde

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Agenda Item #5 - Legal / Ben Darby, Esq

a. General Manager Performance Evaluation
We are still waiting for two reviews from two Board Members. We will proceed at the next Board Meeting.
This Agenda Item is informational.

b. Lakeland Volunteers in Medicine UAP
Lakeland Volunteers in Medicine UAP Agreement

[Attachments available]

“Approval of the agreement as presented.”
15t Martha Santiago / 2" Guy Lalonde

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

c. Addition of Land, Resolution 26-01
Inclusion of land to be added to the district — Skyline Industrial Park

[Attachments available]

“Approval of the agreement as presented.”

39



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

15 Bill Mutz / 2" Guy Lalonde

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Agenda Item #6 — Planning / Nicole McCleary, Director

a. FY25-26 Strategic Plan

The Citrus Connection Strategic Plan provides a clear framework to guide the agency’s priorities and
performance for the upcoming year. The plan focuses on three key areas: Improving Customer
Experience, Investing in Employees, and Strengthening Community Value.

- Improving Customer Experience: Citrus Connection will deliver 85% of service on time, as
measured by daily pull-out. This goal ensures service reliability and enhances customer
trust in transit operations.

- Investing in Employees: Citrus Connection will retain 90% of its workforce by providing
competitive wages and benefits, achieved through the successful execution of a new
collective bargaining agreement and updated health care package. Retention is critical to
maintaining safe, consistent, and customer-focused service delivery.

- Strengthening Community Value: Citrus Connection will establish a baseline of
community perception regarding transit services. This data will help shape public
engagement strategies and inform decision-making that reflects community needs.

Performance will be tracked through quarterly scorecards and annual review, ensuring accountability and
transparency. By focusing on operational reliability, workforce stability, and community engagement, the
Strategic Plan positions Citrus Connection to deliver sustainable improvements and measurable results
for the region.

[Attachments available]
b. Transit Development Plan (TDP) Major Update

Citrus Connection is finalizing its Transit Development Plan (TDP) Update, a strategic framework that
guides service delivery, investment priorities, and system improvements over the next ten years.

The public comment period will begin on 10.08.2025, providing an opportunity for stakeholders and
community members to review the draft plan and submit feedback. All input will be considered prior to
adoption to ensure the TDP reflects community needs and priorities

[Attachments available]

c. Dixieland Squeeze

40



CITRUS CONNECTION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes
Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

Citrus Connection received a request to extend the Downtown Lakeland Squeeze into the Dixieland area,
citing multiple reasons for expansion. Citrus Connection was able to develop a proposal to meet these
needs and provide service to a new part of Lakeland.

This service will provide approximately 15-minute service and connects with two points on the Downtown
Lakeland Squeeze, allowing seamless transfers.

Citrus Connection will also lead a stakeholder meeting with key members of the Dixieland and Downtown
Lakeland communities to ensure the service will meet their needs.

[Attachments available]

d. Squeeze Innovation

After reviewing and completing the Dixieland Squeeze Proposal, staff found it critical to consider the next
steps and where this service’s future lies. Citrus Connection understands that implementing innovative
service is critical to the success of the agency and the community. Staff will discuss what plans are being
discussed and how the Squeeze may be affected.

The major next step that Staff identified was implementation of Mobility on Demand (MOD) in the Lakeland
Downtown core. This will be a shift from the traditional ‘fixed’ Squeeze route, and will greatly increase
service area, accessibility, and reliability of the Squeeze service as a whole. It will also allow Staff to set a
baseline for future MOD efforts.

[Attachments available]

Agenda Item #7 - General Manager Report / Tom Phillips, General Manager

a. Agenda Updates
- Sun ‘N Fun: we will run allweek until 11 pm.
- Monday is a Admin Holiday, but service day
- PTA’s Board Meeting will be tomorrow right after the TPO’s Board Meeting
- We are celebrating 10 years of couty wide transit

Agenda Item #8 — General Manager Informational Summary

a. September Calendar
[Attachments available]

b. Ridership and UAP Update

41



CITRUS CONNECTION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Meeting Minutes

Hollingsworth Board Room
1212 George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, FL. 33815
Wednesday, October 8", 2025 at 8:30 a.m.

[Attachments available]

Agenda Item #9 — Other Business
None

Adjournment at 9:54 a.m.

Approved this 12" day of November 2025.

Chair - City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley

Minutes Recorder - Ella Joseph

42



	1a- AGENDA
	1a- Approval of CC Minutes
	3- GEM Award
	4a- Agenda ITEM_Florida Polytech Partnership
	4b- Agenda ITEM_Letter of Support_Florida Polytech Partnership
	5a- Agenda ITEM - LAMTD Financials
	5a- Narrative LAMTD SEPT 2025
	5a- LAMTD SEPTEMBER 2025 Financials- UnAudited
	5b- Agenda ITEM - PCTS Financials
	5b- Narrative PCTS SEPT 2025 Financials
	5b- PCTS Financial Report - 2025-09 September  UNAUDITED
	5c- Agenda ITEM - TD Financials
	5c- TD Narrative SEPT 25
	5c- TD September 2025 Financials UnAudited
	6a- Agenda ITEM - General Manager Performance Review
	6b- Agenda ITEM - District Attorney Update
	7a- Agenda ITEM - Major TDP Update
	7a- Citrus Connection TDP Presentation - Post Comments - 11.12.25
	Citrus Connection�Transit Development Plan
	What is a Transit Development Plan?
	What is Next?

	8a- Agenda ITEM - Memorandum of Understanding_LAMTDxBridget Way Foundation
	9a- Agenda ITEM - Memorandum of Agreement_CTDxLAMTD
	9a- Polk MOA TD2621
	10a- Agenda ITEM - Agency Updates
	11a- Agenda ITEM - October Calendar
	11a- October Calendar
	11b- Agenda ITEM - September 2025 Ridership
	11b- Citrus Connection Ridership Report - September 2025 - Nov BOD
	Citrus Connection Ridership Report
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	12- Agenda ITEM - Other Business
	1a- Board Minute October 8th, 2025
	UBoard Members Present
	UBoard Members Absent
	UCall to Order
	UAgenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	UAgenda Item #2 – Approval of the Minutes
	c. TD Financials
	d. Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) - Public Transportation Grant Agreement (PTGA) for the State Transit Block Grant Program having Financial Project Number FM# 440757-1-84-09
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	e. Purchase of six (6) Para Transit Buses
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
	MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

	11b- Citrus Connection Ridership Report - September 2025 - Nov BOD.pdf
	Citrus Connection Ridership Report
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5




